
 

 

 GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, April 20, 2023 

Meeting to be held at 1700 Eaton Drive 
6:00 PM 

 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call / Excuse Absent Members 

 
2. Approve Meeting Agenda 

 
3. Public Comment Period 

A. Expected Visitor – Joy Gaasch, President, Grand Haven Chamber of Commerce 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
A. Approve Minutes of the March 16, 2023, Governance Training Workshop and the March 16, 

2023, Regular Board Meeting  
B. Receive and File: March Financial Statements, Power Supply and Retail Sales Dashboards 
C. Receive and File: March Key Performance Indicator (KPI) Dashboard 
D. Receive and File: MPPA Energy Services Project Resource Position Report (dated 04/07/2023) 
E. Receive and File: Constellation Energy Market Update Graphs (dated 4/11/2023) 
F. Approve Payment of Bills ($2,657,239.65 in total) 

1. In the amount of $2,412,334.94 from the Operation & Maintenance Fund 
2. In the amount of $244,904.71 from the Renewal & Replacement Fund 

G. Approve Confirming Purchase Orders ($29,260 in total) 
1. PO #22598, IPKeys Power Partners, Inc., $8,000 (Cybersecurity monitoring annual 

subscription)  
2. PO #22616, Power Line Supply Company, $5,160 (Rubber gloves, sleeves, and hose testing) 
3. PO #22617, Cooperative Response Center, Inc., $9,300 (CRC Link user license) 
4. PO #22619, Dykstra Landscape Management, $6,800 (2023 lawn care) 

  
5. General Manager’s Report 

A. Approve Purchase Orders ($1,268,782 in total) 
1. PO #22563, Power Line Supply Company, $145,170 (Overhead material for OF34 and OF42 

circuit rebuild project)  
2. PO #22594, Irby Utilities, $13,995 (3 x 200 kVAR capacitors) 
3. PO #22608, Kent Power Inc., $933,909 (Construction contract for OF34 and OF42 circuit 

rebuild project) 
4. PO #22609, Irby Utilities, $50,428 (7 x 25 kVA and 5 x 50 kVA pole-mount transformers) 
5. PO #22610, Resco, $125,280 (7 x 25 KVA, 5 x 50 kVA, and 8 x 75 KVA pole-mount 

transformers) 
B. Fiscal Year 2024 Initial Budget and Capital Plan Presentation (requires approval at May Board 

meeting) 
C. Update on Evaluation of BLP Reuse of Former City Fire Station Property  
 

6. Chairman’s Report 
A. Joint Meeting with City Council Planning 
B.  BLP Response to Proposed Charter Amendment Petition Announcement and Appropriate 

Participation in the Process Going Forward by Individual Board Members, the Board as a Whole, 
and Staff   

 
7. Other Business 

A.   May’s Regular Board Meeting is May 25th, the 4th Thursday  



 

 

 
8. Public Comment Period 
 
9. Closed Session under Section 8.(1)(d) of the Open Meetings Act to Consider Purchase of Real Estate 

 
10. Adjourn 











 GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER 
MINUTES 

MARCH 16, 2023 

 - 1 -  
  
 

A Training Workshop of the Grand Haven Board of Light and Power was held on 
Thursday, March 16, 2023 at 3:00 PM for the Board and Executive Staff at the Board’s office 
located at 1700 Eaton Drive in Grand Haven, Michigan. 

 The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Chairperson Westbrook. 

 Present were Directors Crum, Knoth, Witherell and Westbrook.     

 Also present were David Walters, General Manager; Renee Molyneux, Administrative 
Services Manager and Secretary to the Board; Erik Booth, Operations & Power Supply Manager; 
Lynn Diffell, Accounting & Finance Manager; Rob Shelley, Distribution & Engineering 
Manager; Danielle Martin, Administrative Assistant; Christopher Johnson and Eleanor Siewert, 
Michigan Municipal League. 

23-04A Director Witherell, supported by Director Knoth, moved to approve the meeting 
agenda.  

The motion was unanimously approved. 

Public Comment Period – No comments were provided. 

23-04B Open Meetings Act and Parliamentary Procedures Training was provided by 
Christopher Johnson and Eleanor Siewert from Michigan Municipal League. 

No formal action was taken during this training workshop. 

 At 6:02 PM, the March 16, 2023 workshop was adjourned.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Renee Molyneux 
Secretary to the Board  

 
RM 



 GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER 
MINUTES 

MARCH 16, 2023 
 

 - 1 -  
  
 

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Grand Haven Board of Light and Power was held on 
Thursday, March 16, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. at the Board’s office located at 1700 Eaton Drive in 
Grand Haven, Michigan and electronically via live Zoom Meeting.  

 The meeting was called to order at 6:10 p.m. by Chairperson Westbrook. 

 Present were Directors Crum, Hendrick, Knoth, Witherell and Westbrook. 

 Also present were David Walters, General Manager; Renee Molyneux, Administrative 
Services Manager and Secretary to the Board; Rob Shelley, Distribution & Engineering Manager; 
Erik Booth, Operations & Power Supply Manager; AnnMarie Sanford, Dickinson Wright; Lara 
Zawaideh, HDR via Zoom; and David Shull, Progressive A.E. 

23-05A Director Witherell, supported by Director Crum, moved to approve the meeting 
agenda. 

In a roll call vote of the Board, those in favor: Directors Crum, Hendrick, Knoth, Witherell 
and Westbrook; those absent: none; those opposed: none. Motion passed. 

Public Comment Period – No comments were provided. No formal action taken. 

23-05B Director Witherell, supported by Director Hendrick, moved to approve the consent 
agenda items. The consent agenda includes: 

 Approve the Minutes of the February 16, 2023 Implicit Bias Training Workshop and 
the February 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting  

 Accept and file the February 2023 Financial Statements and Power Supply & Retail 
Sales Dashboard 

 Accept and file the February KPI Dashboard 

 Accept and file the MPPA Energy Services Project Resource Position Report dated 
February 28, 2023  

 Accept and file the Constellation Energy Market Graphs from March 3, 2023 

 Accept and file the American Rescue Plan packet 

 Accept and file the 2023 MPPA Stakeholders Meeting, to be held on May 18, 2023 

 Approve paying bills in the amount of $2,651,840.95 from the Operation and 
Maintenance Fund 

 Approve paying bills in the amount of $156,940.74 from the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund 

 Confirm Purchase Order #22534 to Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories in the 
amount of $6,285.36 for Fiber Optic Cable for the Osipoff Control House Project 

In a roll call vote of the Board, those in favor: Directors Crum, Hendrick, Knoth, Witherell 
and Westbrook; those absent: none; those opposed: none. Motion passed. 



 GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER 
MINUTES 

MARCH 16, 2023 
 

 - 2 -  
  
 

23-05C Lara Zawaideh, HDR, provided an update on the Harbor Island environmental 
project to the Board primarily focusing on CCR activities. 

AnnMarie Sanford, Environmental Attorney at Dickinson Wright, reported she has been 
negotiating the Administrative Consent Order (ACO) with EGLE. They are now reviewing the 
additional comments.  

Discussion regarding who executes and approves the ACO was held. The BLP has been 
removed from the project and is no longer in control of the site; therefore, those who are in 
control of the site should sign the ACO. Sanford stated the party that executes the ACO will be 
doing so on behalf of the BLP.  

No formal action taken. 

23-05D Updates from Brittany Goode, City of Grand Haven Sustainability & Energy 
Commission and Ryan Cotton, Community Energy Planning Committee were provided.  

No formal action taken. 

23-05E Director Witherell, supported by Director Knoth, moved to approve the following 
Purchase Orders: 

 Approve Purchase Order #22326-1 to Newkirk Electric in the amount of $36,266 for 
additional substation exits conduit work for the Osipoff Control House Project  

 Approve Purchase Order #22539 to Alpine Power Systems in the amount of $7,950 for 
2023 annual substation battery testing  

 Approve Purchase Order #22548 to Joint Michigan Apprentice Program in the amount 
of $24,420 for Apprentice Lineworker tuition and books 

 Approve Purchase Order #22553 to Power Line Supply in the amount of $25,498 to 
purchase streetlights for the LED Conversion Project  

 Approve Purchase Order #22555 to Border States Electric in the amount of $16,720 
for 4/0 Tri-Plex Wire  

 Approve Purchase Order #22560 to Power Line Supply in the amount of $543,260.27 
for Hendrix Wire for the OF34 and OF42 Project 

 Approve Purchase Order #22561 to Brown Wood Preserving Co. in the amount of 
$93,989.03 for wood poles for the OF34 and OF42 Project and BLP stock 

 Approve Purchase Order #22562 to Western Tel-Com in the amount of $129,400 for 
underground labor for that OF34 and OF42 Project  

 Approve Purchase Order #22565 to Irby in the amount of $22,250.50 for switches and 
fuses for that OF34 and OF42 Project  



 GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER 
MINUTES 

MARCH 16, 2023 
 

 - 3 -  
  
 

In a roll call vote of the Board, those in favor: Directors Crum, Hendrick, Knoth, Witherell 
and Westbrook; those absent: none; those opposed: none. Motion passed. 

23-05F Director Witherell, supported by Director Crum, moved to appoint Danielle 
Martin as Secretary to the Board effective April 1, 2023. 

In a roll call vote of the Board, those in favor: Directors Crum, Hendrick, Knoth, Witherell 
and Westbrook; those absent: none; those opposed: none. Motion passed. 

23-05G Director Witherell, supported by Director Crum, moved to request an 
extension for the Permit to Install a Combined Heat and Power Plant on Harbor Island. 

In a roll call vote of the Board, those in favor: Directors Crum, Witherell and Westbrook; 
those absent: none; those opposed: Directors Hendrick and Knoth. Motion passed. 

23-05H The Board reviewed and discussed proposed Board budget items that will be 
incorporated into the FY2024 budget. 

No formal action taken. 

23-05I Director Hendrick, supported by Director Witherell, moved to authorize 
Chairperson Westbrook to work with Mayor McNally to schedule and establish an agenda 
for a joint meeting of the Board and Council. 

In a roll call vote of the Board, those in favor: Directors Crum, Hendrick, Knoth, Witherell 
and Westbrook; those absent: none; those opposed: none. Motion passed. 

23-05J The Board discussed a letter written by the Executive Staff team regarding 
Board treatment of professional consultants. 

No formal action taken. 

23-05K The Board recognized and thanked Mike Kellogg for his thirty years of 
service and Renee Molyneux for her fifteen years of service with the Board of Light & 
Power. 

No formal action taken. 

23-05L David Shull, Progressive A.E., presented an evaluation of the City’s former 
Fire Station located on the corner of N. 5th Street and Columbus. Project costs are estimated 
in the $3.3 to $4.3 million dollar range and project completion is estimated to take 
approximately 14 months given increasing lead times for materials.  

The Board was asked to submit any questions to the General Manager in the next 
couple weeks. A work study will be scheduled to discuss next steps. 

No formal action taken. 



 GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER 
MINUTES 

MARCH 16, 2023 
 

 - 4 -  
  
 

23-05M Rob Shelley, Distribution & Engineering Manager, provided a 2022 GHBLP 
Reliability update to the Board. Shelley reported the BLP’s performance is better than state 
and national averages in all categories. Causes for power outages have all been distribution 
related. Improvements to the distribution system are paying off. 

No formal action taken. 

23-05N Erik Booth provided a draft FY2024 Power Supply Budget to the Board. 
Booth reported the BLP’s renewable portfolio is increasing, currently at 22% and is expected 
to be at 26% in FY2024. Power supply costs are lower than FY2023 projections. Future 
capacity and transmission pricing is likely to increase due to volatility in the market. 

No formal action taken. 

Public Comment Period –  

Jim Hagen, 400 Lake stated, while expensive, he likes the Fire Station re-use 
opportunity. Hagen encouraged the Board to continue evaluation and consider installing solar 
panels on the roof. Hagen feels, if the site is capped, Harbor Island is a good location to 
install a solar array. 

David Mann, 515 Howard Ave. agrees the Board, especially today, should have legal 
assistance and recognized the importance of BLP frontline workers. 

Chairperson Westbrook recognized and thanked BLP lineworkers who provided 
mutual aid restoration assistance in Hillsdale and in the Hart area caused by ice storms. 

The General Manager advised the Board MDOT is now fully maintaining their US31 
traffic signals. The BLP is still maintaining municipal traffic lights within our service 
territory. 

 No formal action taken. 

 At 9:07 PM by motion of Director Hendrick, supported by Director Knoth, the March 16, 
2023 Board meeting was adjourned.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Renee Molyneux 
Secretary to the Board      

RM 



 

 

MARCH 2023 MARCH 2022

 

ASSETS
     CURRENT ASSETS

       CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $31,132,126 $31,320,618

       ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 3,871,829 3,686,191

       PREPAID 237,151 10,778

35,241,106 35,017,587

 

     NON-CURRENT ASSETS

       DEPOSITS HELD BY MPIA 7,645,913 7,608,813

       DEPOSITS HELD BY MPPA 2,500,000 2,000,000

       HEALTH BENEFIT FUND 39,355 174,598

       ADVANCE TO CITY OF GRAND HAVEN 749,021 1,037,151

      2021A BOND CONSTRUCTION FUND 8,842,439 11,483,277

      2021A BOND REDEMPTION FUND 688,697 690,846

       OTHER ASSETS 0 0

20,465,425 22,994,685

 

     CAPITAL ASSETS

       CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 3,512,024 3,421,971

       PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 63,055,832 60,444,896

         LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (30,544,723) (29,608,406)

36,023,133 34,258,461

 

     TOTAL ASSETS $91,729,664 $92,270,733

 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/(INFLOWS)
       PENSION/OPEB RELATED (1,711,125) 1,026,945

 

LIABILITIES
     CURRENT LIABILITIES

       ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $1,822,348 $1,162,762

       BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE PAYABLE -                                       -                                       

       SERIES 2021A BOND CURRENT 2,489,665                           2,415,799                           

       ACCRUED PAYROLL LIABILITIES 321,907                               585,516                               

       CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 907,789                               870,047                               

       ACCRUED TRANSFER FUND 140,550                               135,654                               

5,682,259 5,169,778

 

 

     LONG TERM LIABILITIES

       ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION - MITIGATION 16,033,102 6,282,301

       ACCRUED SICK AND PTO 264,532                               289,935                               

       SERIES 2021A BOND 20,300,000                         22,700,000                         

       NET PENSION LIABILITIES (813,406)                             4,450,113                           

       NET OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT 638,925                               1,055,687                           

36,423,153 34,778,036

 

          TOTAL LIABILITIES 42,105,412 39,947,814

 

 

     RETAINED EARNINGS

       BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 44,505,093 48,304,825

       YTD NET INCOME 3,408,034 5,045,039

          RETAINED EARNINGS 47,913,127 53,349,864

 

    TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $90,018,539 $93,297,678

GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE MONTH ENDING MARCH 2023

4/13/2023



GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2023

 

 

Percent Percent

Current Period YTD YTD Variance Variance Previous Year Previous Year Variance Variance

Actual Actual Budget Over (Under) Actual vs Budget Current Period YTD Over (Under) Actual vs Last Year

Operating Revenue

 

Residential Sales 961,065$            9,857,153$     9,789,095$     68,058$             0.70% 921,754$            9,828,858$      28,295$                0.29%

Commercial Sales 774,162              7,692,670       7,921,643       (228,973)            -2.89% 758,556              7,576,011        116,659                1.54%

Industrial Sales 980,267              9,069,424       9,707,704       (638,280)            -6.57% 933,400              8,832,816        236,608                2.68%

Municipal Sales 67,035                760,507          745,459          15,048                2.02% 67,011                738,596           21,911                  2.97%

  Total Charges for Services 2,782,529          27,379,754     28,163,901     (784,147)            -2.78% 2,680,721          26,976,281      403,473                1.50%

 

Street Lighting 28,462                254,605          253,499          1,106                  0.44% 32,361                291,684           (37,079)                -12.71%

 

Other Revenue 8,314                  146,721          148,499          (1,778)                -1.20% 11,109                176,451           (29,730)                -16.85%

   Total Operating Revenue 2,819,305          27,781,080     28,565,899     (784,819)            -2.75% 2,724,191          27,444,416      336,664                1.23%

 

Operating Expenses

  Net Purchased Power 1,343,944          15,155,859     15,861,825     (705,966)            -4.45% 1,196,470          12,335,406      2,820,453            22.86%

  Distribution Operations 138,855              1,413,001       1,886,762       (473,761)            -25.11% (77,009)               1,724,476        (311,475)              -18.06%

  Distribution Maintenance 232,382              2,616,617       2,171,438       445,179             20.50% 147,489              2,254,502        362,115                16.06%

  Energy Optimization 29,547                146,140          150,000          (3,860)                -2.57% 6,802                  258,764           (112,624)              -43.52%

  Administration 223,622              2,078,302       2,205,915       (127,613)            -5.79% 1,405                  1,942,209        136,093                7.01%

  Legacy Pension Expense 61,499                535,052          829,959          (294,907)            -35.53% 807,729              807,729           (272,677)              -                      

Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 2,029,849          21,944,971     23,105,899     (1,160,928)         -5.02% 2,082,886          19,323,086      2,621,885            13.57%

 

Operating Net Income Before Depreciation 789,456              5,836,109       5,460,000       376,109             6.89% 641,305              8,121,330        (2,285,221)           -28.14%

 

Depreciation 163,541              1,496,941       1,387,494       109,447             7.89% 156,539              1,421,978        74,963                  5.27%

    Operating Net Income 625,915              4,339,168       4,072,506       266,662             6.55% 484,766              6,699,352        (2,360,184)           -35.23%

 

Nonoperating Revenue/(Expenses) 19,258                450,584          106,627          343,957             322.58% (11,060)               (212,868)          663,452                -311.67%

Asset Retirement Expense -                           -                       -                       -                          #DIV/0! (2,313)                 (78,047)            78,047                  -100.00%

Non-Operating Revenue/(Expenses) 19,258                450,584          106,627          343,957             322.58% (13,373)               (290,915)          741,499                -254.89%

Transfers to City of Grand Haven (140,550)            (1,381,718)      (1,420,870)      39,152                -2.76% (135,654)            (1,363,398)       (18,320)                1.34%

 

    Increase in Net Assets 504,623$            3,408,034$     2,758,263$     649,771$           23.56% 335,739$            5,045,039$      (1,637,005)$         -32.45%

4/13/2023



Power Supply for Month (kWh) FY2023 FY2022

Net Purchased (Sold) Power 17,364,639                        74.74% 17,998,723                        75.94%

Renewable Energy Purchases 5,870,166                          25.26% 5,703,067                          24.06%

Monthly Power Supply Total 23,234,805                        23,701,790                        

Days in Month 31 31

Average Daily kWh Supply for Month 749,510 764,574

% Change -1.97%

Power Supply FYTD FY2023 FY2022

Net Purchased (Sold) Power 174,566,251                      79.01% 183,632,913                      81.50%

Renewable Energy Purchases 46,382,605                        20.99% 41,688,980                        18.50%

FYTD Power Supply Total 220,948,856                     225,321,893                     

FYTD Days (from 7/1) 274 274

Average Daily kWh Supply FYTD 806,383 822,343

% Change -1.94%

FY2023 FY2022

Net Purchased Power Expenses $15,155,859 $12,335,406

% Change 22.86%

Net Energy Expenses

per kWh Supplied to System FYTD $0.06859 $0.05475

% Change 25.30%

GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

POWER SUPPLY DASHBOARD

FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2023

4/13/2023



Monthly Retail Customers FY2023 FY2022

Residential 13,065 87.45% 12,862 87.44%

Commercial 1,631 10.92% 1,602 10.89%

Industrial 128 0.86% 128 0.87%

Municipal 116 0.78% 117 0.80%

Total 14,940 14,709

Monthly Energy Sold (kWh)

Residential 6,239,868 30.00% 6,443,998 29.91%

Commercial 5,453,720 26.22% 5,720,504 26.56%

Industrial 8,474,513 40.74% 8,693,485 40.36%

Municipal 545,572 2.62% 572,026 2.66%

Retail Monthly Total 20,713,673 99.57% 21,430,013 99.48%

Street Lighting 88,819 0.43% 111,944 0.52%

Total Monthly Energy Sold 20,802,492 21,541,957

Days in Primary Meter Cycle 28 28

kWh Sold per Day 742,946 769,356

% Change -3.43%

Energy Sold (kWh) FYTD FY2023 FY2022

Residential 69,322,359 31.86% 71,360,121 32.21%

Commercial 58,344,396 26.82% 59,350,951 26.79%

Industrial 82,584,622 37.96% 83,254,469 37.58%

Municipal 6,541,170 3.01% 6,564,675 2.96%

Retail Energy  Sold Total FYTD 216,792,547 99.65% 220,530,216 99.54%

Street Lighting 771,442 0.35% 1,012,671 0.46%

Energy Sold FYTD 217,563,989 221,542,887

Weighted Days in Meter Cycles FYTD 273 274

kWh Sold per Day 796,938 808,551

% Change -1.44%

Average Rate Average Rate Percent Change

Sales Revenue FYTD FY2023 ($/kWh) FY2022 ($/KWh) $/kWh

Residential $9,857,489 $0.1422 $9,828,858 $0.1377 3.24%

Commercial $7,692,333 $0.1318 $7,576,011 $0.1276 3.29%

Industrial $9,069,424 $0.1098 $8,832,816 $0.1061 3.51%

Municipal $760,507 $0.1163 $738,596 $0.1125 3.34%

Retail Sales Revenue FYTD $27,379,754 $0.1263 $26,976,280 $0.1223 3.25%

Street Lighting $254,605 $291,684

Total Sales Revenue FYTD (Excl. Wholesale) $27,634,359 $0.1270 $27,267,964 $0.1231

FY2023 FY2022

Approx. Distribution Losses FYTD 1.17% 1.68%

Net Energy Expenses/kWh Sold FYTD $0.06940 $0.05566

% Change 24.67%

GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

SALES DASHBOARD

FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2023

4/13/2023



GHBLP Key Performance Indicators 

April 14, 2023 

1) Reliability

2) Power Supply

3) Average Retail Revenue per kWh

Caution

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00
5.00 6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

SAIDI
12 Month Rolling Average - <3hrs

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

(m
in

u
te

s/
C

u
st

o
m

er
)

System Average Interruption Index (SAIDI)

Good

-8

-6

-4

-2
0

2

4

6

8

10

FYTD Monthly System Input: (Actual vs Estimated) 

Goal FY23 +/- 3%

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

28,000

30,000

32,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

(M
W

h
rs

/m
o

n
th

)

Monthly System Input (MWhr)

Budgeted Forecast Actual

Good

-8

-6

-4

-2
0

2

4

6

8

10

FYTD Average Retail Revenue: 

(Actual vs Estimated) 
Goal FY23 +/- 3.0%

$0.110

$0.115

$0.120

$0.125

$0.130

$0.135

$0.140

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

($
/k

W
h

r)

Average Retail Revenue per kWh

Average Retail Revenue per kWh Estimated Average Revenue per kWh

4C



4) Rates/PSCA 

 

5) Financial 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Good

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

FYTD Power Supply Cost Adjustment: 

(Actual vs Estimated) 

0.00000

0.00200

0.00400

0.00600

0.00800

0.01000

0.01200

0.01400

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

($
/k

W
h

r)

Monthly Power Supply Cost Adjustment

PSCA Billed PSCA Estimated

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

FYTD Days Cash: 
(Actual vs Budgeted) 

$25,000,000

$27,000,000

$29,000,000

$31,000,000

$33,000,000

$35,000,000

$37,000,000

$39,000,000

$41,000,000

$43,000,000

$45,000,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

C
a

sh
 o

n
 H

a
n

d

Cash

Cash On Hand Actual Cash On Hand Budgeted



Page 1 of 4

Forecasted Power Supply Resource Position for GRAN

Total Resources, MWh
Project Assets

Landfill Project
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Energy Transactions

20,393 22,120 27,856 26,535 21,752 20,742 20,192 20,467 19,912 18,622 19,179 17,435
1,981 1,815 1,803 1,822 1,850 1,955 1,884 1,888 2,007 1,819 1,951 1,970
1,981 1,815 1,803 1,822 1,850 1,955 1,884 1,888 2,007 1,819 1,951 1,970

18,412 20,304 26,053 24,712 19,902 18,787 18,308 18,578 17,905 16,803 17,228 15,465
3,827 5,106 5,011 4,608 4,470 4,108 4,157 3,419 3,048 3,788 5,002 4,801

14,585 15,198 21,042 20,104 15,432 14,679 14,150 15,159 14,858 13,015 12,226 10,664

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24Power Supply, MWh
Total Resources, MWh
Project Assets

Landfill Project
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Energy Transactions

240,084 196,171 120,708 76,478 69,280
22,746 22,237 21,583 15,225 8,113
22,746 22,237 21,583 15,225 8,113

217,338 173,935 99,125 61,253 61,167
52,791 57,950 61,340 61,253 61,167

164,547 115,985 37,786

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028Power Supply, MWh

Forecasted Hedge Plan % (w/o Peaking)
Minimum Hedge Plan %
Target Hedge %
Maximum Hedge Plan Range %
Renewables Portfolio %
Forecasted Load
Forecasted Market Balancing, MWh
Forecasted Hedge % (w/ Peaking)

90% 86% 92% 86% 88% 90% 92% 88% 79% 80% 79% 80%
75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75%
75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75%
95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%
26% 27% 22% 21% 26% 26% 28% 23% 20% 24% 29% 31%

(22,582) (25,694) (30,285) (30,887) (24,725) (23,157) (21,855) (23,226) (25,113) (23,332) (24,328) (21,910)
(2,190) (3,575) (2,429) (4,352) (2,973) (2,414) (1,663) (2,760) (5,201) (4,710) (5,149) (4,475)

90% 86% 92% 86% 88% 90% 92% 88% 79% 80% 79% 80%

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24

Forecasted ATC Power Supply Resource Position, by Month

Fo
re

ca
st

ed
 H

ed
ge

 P
la

n 
%

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24
0 %

50 %

100 %

92%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

75%

95%

95%

95%

95%

26%

27% 22%

21%

26%

26%

28% 23%

20%

24%

29%

31%

GRAN is forecasted to have an average of 86% of Around the Clock (ATC) Power Supply hedged over the upcoming 12 months, and Renewable Energy Resources are forecasted to provide an average of 25% towards load.
Total Resources are forecasted to cost an average of $47.48 Per MWh, and Market Balancing Energy is forecasted to come in at an average of $47.43 per MWh. This results in a Total Forecasted Power Supply weighted average cost of $48.03 over the upcoming 12 months.

Forecasted ATC Power Supply Resource Position, by Year

Fo
re

ca
st

ed
 H

ed
ge

 P
la

n 
%

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
0 %

50 %

100 % 80%
75% 65%

50%

35% 25%

25%

27%

27%

25%

23%

Minimum Hedge Plan % Target Hedge % Maximum Hedge Plan Range % Renewables Portfolio % Forecasted Hedge Plan % (w/o Peaking)

Forecasted Hedge Plan % (w/o Peaking)
Minimum Hedge Plan %
Target Hedge %
Maximum Hedge Plan Range %
Renewables Portfolio %
Forecasted Load
Forecasted Market Balancing, MWh
Forecasted Hedge % (w/ Peaking)

80% 65% 40% 25% 23%
75% 65% 50% 35% 25%
75% 65% 50% 35% 25%
95% 80% 70% 55% 40%
25% 27% 27% 25% 23%

(301,123) (301,594) (302,041) (302,450) (302,788)
(61,040) (105,423) (181,333) (225,972) (233,508)

80% 65% 40% 25% 23%

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

4D4D



Page 2 of 4

Total Resources, $'s 
Project Assets

Landfill Project
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Energy Transactions

($893,023) ($982,603) ($1,440,229) ($1,322,518) ($958,975) ($890,087) ($862,503) ($908,009) ($1,193,555) ($1,034,395) ($826,926) ($804,765)
($213,106) ($206,287) ($213,835) ($213,100) ($206,287) ($213,100) ($207,950) ($213,835) ($221,452) ($200,212) ($113,622) ($214,372)
($213,106) ($206,287) ($213,835) ($213,100) ($206,287) ($213,100) ($207,950) ($213,835) ($221,452) ($200,212) ($113,622) ($214,372)

($679,917) ($776,316) ($1,226,395) ($1,109,418) ($752,688) ($676,987) ($654,553) ($694,175) ($972,102) ($834,183) ($713,304) ($590,392)
($168,249) ($220,752) ($215,392) ($198,266) ($194,485) ($180,973) ($185,768) ($153,100) ($138,458) ($171,444) ($224,071) ($213,163)
($511,668) ($555,564) ($1,011,003) ($911,152) ($558,203) ($496,015) ($468,785) ($541,075) ($833,644) ($662,739) ($489,233) ($377,230)

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24Power Supply $'s

Locational Basis, $'s 
Locational Basis (Projects)
Locational Basis (Contracted Power Supply)

($794) ($44) ($56) ($1,035) ($854) ($564) ($1,335) $1,233 ($1,729) ($4,303) ($1,279) ($685)
$481 ($4,290) ($3,979) ($17,866) ($18,950) ($16,983) ($9,698) ($26,987) ($24,964) ($4,619) ($15,550) ($10,148)

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24Locational Basis, $'s

Power Supply $/MWh
Project Assets

Landfill Project
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Energy Transactions

$107.59 $113.63 $118.59 $116.95 $111.51 $108.98 $110.37 $113.25 $110.35 $110.08 $58.24 $108.82

$43.96 $43.24 $42.99 $43.02 $43.51 $44.06 $44.68 $44.78 $45.43 $45.26 $44.79 $44.40
$35.08 $36.55 $48.05 $45.32 $36.17 $33.79 $33.13 $35.69 $56.11 $50.92 $40.02 $35.37

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24Power Supply $/MWh

Locational Basis, $/MWh 
Locational Basis (Projects)
Locational Basis (Contracted Power Supply)

$0.40 $0.02 $0.03 $0.57 $0.46 $0.29 $0.71 ($0.65) $0.86 $2.37 $0.66 $0.35
($0.03) $0.21 $0.15 $0.72 $0.95 $0.90 $0.53 $1.45 $1.39 $0.27 $0.90 $0.66

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24Locational Basis, $/MWh

Forecasted Power Supply Resource Cost, by Month

$/
M

W
h

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24
20$

40$

60$

80$

$34.33 $40.78

$54.10
$50.17

$41.73
$36.02 $39.17

$51.37

$70.12
$64.68

$46.09
$40.82$42.89 $44.08 $50.50 $44.60 $42.95 $42.95

$44.37

$55.55

$43.12

Forecasted Market Balancing LMP, $/MWh
Forecasted Market Balancing LMP, $'s
Total Forecasted Power Supply, $/MWh
Total Forecasted Power Supply Costs, $'s

$34.33 $40.78 $54.10 $50.17 $41.73 $36.02 $39.17 $51.37 $70.12 $64.68 $46.09 $40.82
($75,171) ($145,796) ($131,421) ($218,334) ($124,038) ($86,969) ($65,133) ($141,781) ($364,714) ($304,608) ($237,354) ($182,687)

$42.89 $44.08 $52.03 $50.50 $44.60 $42.95 $42.95 $46.31 $63.11 $57.77 $44.44 $45.56
($968,508) ($1,132,732) ($1,575,685) ($1,559,753) ($1,102,817) ($994,604) ($938,668) ($1,075,543) ($1,584,961) ($1,347,926) ($1,081,109) ($998,284)

May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24

Forecasted Market Balancing LMP, $/MWh Total Forecasted Power Supply, $/MWh Contracted Energy, $/MWh

Locational Basis, $/MWh 
Locational Basis (Projects)
Locational Basis (Contracted Power Supply)

$0.53 $0.55 $0.59 $0.97 $0.35
$0.71 $0.89 $1.36 $1.88 $1.93

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028Locational Basis, $/MWh

Power Supply $/MWh
Project Assets

Landfill Project
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Energy Transactions

$110.06 $112.34 $118.52 $120.62 $124.38

$44.60 $45.73 $46.64 $47.40 $48.18
$42.77 $44.09 $46.32

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028Power Supply $/MWh

Locational Basis, $'s 
Locational Basis (Projects)
Locational Basis (Contracted Power Supply)

($12,098) ($12,232) ($12,829) ($14,761) ($2,836)
($153,739) ($155,360) ($134,587) ($115,035) ($118,169)

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028Locational Basis, $'s

Total Resources, $'s 
Project Assets

Landfill Project
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Energy Transactions

($11,895,295) ($10,261,951) ($7,168,828) ($4,739,987) ($3,956,125)
($2,503,299) ($2,497,970) ($2,557,919) ($1,836,474) ($1,009,081)
($2,503,299) ($2,497,970) ($2,557,919) ($1,836,474) ($1,009,081)

($9,391,996) ($7,763,982) ($4,610,908) ($2,903,513) ($2,947,044)
($2,354,502) ($2,650,073) ($2,860,679) ($2,903,513) ($2,947,044)
($7,037,494) ($5,113,908) ($1,750,229)

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028Power Supply $'s

Forecasted Market Balancing LMP, $/MWh
Forecasted Market Balancing LMP, $'s
Total Forecasted Power Supply, $/MWh
Total Forecasted Power Supply Costs, $'s

$49.88 $53.60 $57.41 $60.42 $62.03
($3,044,608) ($5,650,715) ($10,409,620) ($13,653,136) ($14,485,590)

$50.16 $53.32 $58.69 $61.24 $61.31
($15,105,739) ($16,080,258) ($17,725,864) ($18,522,919) ($18,562,719)

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Forecasted Power Supply Resource Cost, by Year

$/
M

W
h

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
45$

50$

55$

60$

65$

$49.88

$53.60 $57.41

$60.42

$62.03

$50.16

$61.31

$52.31

$59.39
$61.98

$57.10

Project Asset Costs are as forecasted in the MPPA Financial Plan, including fixed costs and all other anticipated costs in addition to Energy costs. 



Page 3 of 4

Zone 7
Contracted Power Supply

Contracted ESP Renewable PPAs
Contracted Bilateral Capacity Transactions

Planning Reserve Margin Requirement
PRMR

Project Assets
Landfill Project

AEP
Project Assets

Landfill Project

5.402 11.341 11.908 15.743
68.753 67.044 61.913 68.531

9.753 8.044 2.913 9.531
59.000 59.000 59.000 59.000

(65.400) (57.800) (52.200) (55.000)
(65.400) (57.800) (52.200) (55.000)

2.049 2.098 2.195 2.211
2.049 2.098 2.195 2.211
0.472 0.472 0.472 0.472
0.472 0.472 0.472 0.472
0.472 0.472 0.472 0.472

PY 23/24
Sum Fall Win SprCapacity Resources, MW

Forecasted Capacity Resource Position in Load Zone

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 (M
W

)

Sum Fall Win Spr

PY 23/24

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

5.402

11.341 11.908
15.743

65.400

57.800

52.200
55.000

Forecasted Capacity Resource Cost By Zone, $'s

Sum Fall Win Spr

PY 23/24

($1,000K)

($500K)

$0K

$500K

AEP Zone 7 Net Capacity Bilaterals Zone 7 Net Capacity Position Total Capacity Position Revenue or (Cost)

Forecasted Capacity Resource Cost By Zone, $/kw-mo.

Sum Fall Win Spr

PY 23/24

$0.00

$2.00

$4.00

$6.00

$8.00

AEP Zone 7 Net Capacity Bilaterals Zone 7 Net Capacity Position Total Capacity Position

Project Assets

Contracted Power Supply

Net Capacity Position

PRMR

Zone 7
Net Capacity Position

$
$/kw-mo.

Net Capacity Bilaterals
$
$/kw-mo.

AEP
Net Capacity Position

$
$/kw-mo.

$101,287.50 $115,053.20 $110,503.62 $96,340.55
$6.25 $3.38 $3.09 $2.04

($737,100.00) ($737,100.00) ($737,100.00) ($737,100.00)
$4.16 $4.16 $4.16 $4.16

$1,475.54 $1,475.54 $1,475.54 $1,475.54
$1.04 $1.04 $1.04 $1.04

PY 23/24
Sum Fall Win SprCapacity Resources, $'s

$/kw-mo. $3.82 $2.86 $2.77 $2.42

PY 23/24
Sum Fall Win SprTotal Capacity Position

$ ($634,337) ($620,571) ($625,121) ($639,284)

PY 23/24
Sum Fall Win SprTotal Capacity Position Revenue or (Cost)



Page 4 of 4

Net REC Position
Available Banked RECs
Hedge Policy REC Requirement
Assembly Solar
Assembly Solar Phase II
Beebe
Hart Solar
Invenergy Calhoun Solar
Landfill Project (EDL)
Landfill Project (NANR)
Pegasus

42,781 71,435 108,170 149,211 192,692
22,377 42,781 71,435 108,170 149,211

(43,031) (42,606) (42,785) (43,149) (43,468)
9,514 10,250 10,818 10,814 10,826
7,985 8,476 8,940 8,937 8,948
6,228 5,879 6,180 6,178 6,180

5,220 8,670
0 9,219 13,853 13,782 13,723

16,661 16,314 17,484 17,014 16,359
4,921 4,943 5,234 5,234 5,234

18,127 16,180 17,011 17,011 17,009

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026Compliance Year

Forecasted Renewable Energy Credit (REC) Position for GRAN

Forecasted REC Position by Compliance Year

N
um

be
r o

f R
EC

s

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
-50K

0K

50K

100K

150K

200K

250K

85,812

114,041

150,955

192,360

236,160

42,781

71,435

108,170

149,211

192,692

(43,031) (42,606) (42,785) (43,149) (43,468)

REC Requirement REC Supply Net REC Position

3 Year Avg Retail Sales
Hedge Policy REC Target %
Hedge Policy REC Requirement
VGP REC %
VGP REC Requirement

(286,872) (284,038) (285,231) (287,658) (289,785)
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

(43,031) (42,606) (42,785) (43,149) (43,468)
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0 0 0 0 0

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026Compliance Year

Forecasted REC volumes are based on actual meter data when available and use the latest modeled generation for future timeframes. 
Available Banked RECs in a compliance year reflect the forecasted Net REC Position at the end of the previous year.



4E



GHBLP Initial FY 2024 Budget Presentation
April 20, 2023 Board Meeting



Strategic Plan Priorities for FY 2024 Budget
• Power Supply – continue phase-in of higher wholesale power supply costs 

through PSCA (consistent with planned integration and expansion of renewable 
energy portfolio and energy optimization and waste reduction programing)

• Financial Management – retain stable Base Rates (adjusted to recover 25% of 
City’s snowmelt capital equipment costs) consistent with cost-of-service study 
and 5-year rate plan, and establish and maintain “minimum cash reserve” 
position, while appropriately addressing identified capital needs over the 5-year 
financial planning period

• Maintain adequate debt-service coverage

• Human Resources / Business Practices and Technologies – maintain 
stabilized restructured workforce of 42 FTEs addressing identified 
IT/OT/cybersecurity needs as determined appropriate in BRRA and Business 
Continuity Plan (FTEs 72 in FY 2018)



Strategic Plan Priorities for FY 2024 Budget

• Transmission and Distribution – update, maintain, and implement a rolling 
5-year capital improvement plan to effectively address aging T & D 
infrastructure

• Funding BLP Past Environmental Obligations and Liabilities – establish 
and assess appropriate recovery mechanism to collect adequate funds to 
address identified BLP liabilities consistent with the City’s environmental 
remediation and redevelopment planning activities on the Sims site 

• Customer and Community Engagement – update and implement revised 
communications/education plan consistent with recent organizational 
restructuring, customer feedback, community interests, and identified needs   



Projected Retail Sales Volume

Total Retail Sales Volume (including Street Lighting)
• Actual FY 2021 289,215 MWh
• Actual FY 2022 289,614 MWh (+ 0.1%)
• Forecast FY 2023 284,400 MWh (-1.8%)
• Budget FY 2024 287,000 MWh (+0.9%)

• Forecasted FY 2023 retail sales volume is almost identical to actual FY 
2013 retail sales volume of  284,481 MWh and 1.4% below FY 2003
retail sales volume of 288,548 MWh.

• The BLP also generated 95,326 MWh of wholesale sales, primarily from Sims in 
2003 (ten-year average wholesale sales volume FY 2001-2010 – 72,650 MWh)

• Forecasted FY 2023 retail sales volume 5.6% below pre-COVID actual 
FY 2019 sales volume of 301,276 MWh



Projected Retail Sales Volume (excl. Street Lighting)

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Actual Actual Forecast Budget

Residential 92,794.7 91,019.8 88,600.0 89,000.0

Commercial 77,011.5 77,840.4 76,750.0 77,000.0

Industrial 109,698.8 111,143.2 109,700.0 111,600.0

Municipal 8,292.2 8,343.6 8,350.0 8,400.0

Total 287,797.1 288,347.0 283,400.0 286,000.0



Proposed Retail Rates
• No proposed changes in the Base Rates for FY 2024 (nor in street lighting 

rates)
• Continued implementation of 5% increase in fixed monthly charges to 

recover a 25% electric utility contribution to City snowmelt system capital 
costs approved by Board in December 2022 (assessed through June 2024)

• Consistent calculation of PSCA (reimplemented in September 2022) using 
$59/MWh as Base

• Budget utilizes power supply costs discussed at our March 2023 Board meeting and 
projected retail sales volumes results in $2,413,000 in PSCA revenues as compared to 
$1,190,000 now forecasted in FY 2023 (+ $1,223,000)

• Propose establishing Sims Site Combustion Coal Residual (CCR) 
Environmental Remediation Surcharge (ERS) beginning at $3.50/MWh 
effective July 1, 2023 (+$1,000,000)



Proposed Average Revenue per KWh (Cents)

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Actual Actual Forecast Budget

Average Base Rates 12.30 12.25 12.40 12.44

Average PSCA 0.00 0.00 0.42 0.84

ERS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.35

12.30 12.25 12.82 13.64

• Average base rate fluctuations year over year due to annual variations in proportional sales within various rate classes and the
implementation of a 5% increase in fixed monthly charges to recover snowmelt capital costs beginning in February 2023   



Proposed Average Revenue per KWh (Cents)

10.00

10.50

11.00

11.50

12.00

12.50

13.00

13.50

14.00

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024
Environmental Remediation Surcharge (ERS) GHBLP PCA (cents/kWh) GHBLP Base (cents/kWh)

12.4 cents per kWh (+ or – 2%) 



Proposed Average Revenue per KWh (Cents)

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Environmental Remediation Surcharge (ERS) GHBLP PCA (cents/kWh) GHBLP Base (cents/kWh)

Same chart as previous slide with x-axis based at 0.00 cents (as requested by Board Chairman) 



Projected Electric Retail Operating Revenues

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Actual Actual Forecast Budget*

Residential $12,669,845 $12,599,200 $12,737,500 $13,252,500

Commercial $9,809,380 $9,997,640 $10,167,900 $10,557,200

Industrial $11,984,651 $11,778,174 $12,455,300 $13,150,000

Municipal $941,343 $939,070 $984,300 $1,040,300

Total $35,405,219 $35,314,084 $36,345,000 $38,000,000

* Does not include proposed Environmental Remediation Surcharge (ERS)



Projected Environmental Remediation Surcharge

FY 2024 Approximate Average Monthly

Budgeted Customer Count Impact

Residential $311,200 13,050 $1.99

Commercial $269,200 1,631 $165.05

Industrial $390,200 128 $3,048.44

Municipal $29,400 116 253.45

Total $1,000,000 14,925
2.6% increase in total 

monthly billing on average



Environmental Remediation Surcharge

• Asset retirement, environmental remediation, closure and demolition 
expenses (non-operating) booked in FY 2020-FY 2022 totaled $23,598,000

• $7,547,200 has been spent on plant demolition and initial clean-up and 
closure activities on the Sims Site since its retirement in February 2020

• $16,033,100 remains on our balance sheet as of March 2023 as an asset 
retirement obligation and/or environmental mitigation/remediation liability

• Prior to the end of FY 2023, staff is recommending the board self-restrict a 
portion of its now unrestricted cash and investments equivalent to these 
remaining liabilities on our balance sheet (as a “Non-current Asset”)

• In other words, staff is recommending the Board restrict cash assets equal 
to the Board’s environmental liabilities on its balance sheet before the end 
of FY 2023, to more accurately reflect truly unrestricted cash balances in 
our year-end financial statements



Environmental Remediation Surcharge
• At this point, we don’t know our share of the total future environmental 

remediation and redevelopment costs on the Sims site to properly address 
the BLP’s environmental liabilities

• As more information becomes known, and the Board and City Council 
determine the appropriate cost sharing arrangements for these 
environmental costs, the BLP must properly reflect the most recent 
information on its independent balance sheet

• Staff believes it is appropriate to begin recovering from our customers future 
inevitably higher environmental remediation costs as soon as they become 
known (to avoid an even larger rate shock in the future), through an ERS to 
begin on July 1, 2023

• A $3.50/MWh (or $0.0035/kWh) ERS, on estimated annual retail sales of 
286,000 MWhs, will raise approximately $1,000,000 additional in FY 2024  



Environmental Remediation Surcharge
• Staff additionally recommends all future revenues collected through the 

ERS be designated by the Board as a non-operating revenue (not a retail 
“rate for electricity”), and accordingly, such amounts are not considered a 
“gross retail sale of the electric utility” subject to the 5% transfer to the City

• Additionally, we would recommend, upon recovering these amounts in a 
given month, the BLP would also book an equivalent and offsetting non-
operating expense for environmental remediation and mitigation

• This monthly revenue amount would then be booked as an addition to the 
restricted cash asset account and equivalently an addition to the 
environmental remediation and mitigation liability on the balance sheet (i.e. 
zero net impact on the BLP’s Net Position)

• As the BLP/City moves forward on remediation activities, the BLP will use 
only this dedicated restricted cash to pay for such environmental activities, 
and reduce the BLP’s associated liability accordingly    



Environmental Remediation Surcharge
• Our previous actions and financial plan going forward represent the BLP’s 

continuing commitment to recover and pay for all appropriately assessed 
obligations and liabilities associated with our operations of the Sims power 
plant on Harbor Island for nearly 60 years

• To be clear, however, these dedicated funds are not expected to be 
adequate to address other now identified environmental contamination on 
the Sims site and elsewhere on Harbor Island, believed to be originating 
from other sources not associated with BLP operations on the Sims site

• Additionally, these actions allow a mechanism to increase electric utility 
charges to recover increasing environmental liabilities of the BLP if 
necessary, or if other sources are identified to cover a portion of these 
costs, a mechanism to return to our customers any overcollections 
proportionately      



Operating Expenses

• Total power supply expenses within the FY 2024 budget remain at 
$19,300,000 as was presented at our March Board meeting (for a slightly 
lower revised system annual input volume of 294,350 MWh)

• Average budgeted power supply costs then are $65.57/MWh ($67.25/MWh 
at retail assuming a 2.5% distribution system loss)

• FY 2024 budgeted renewable energy purchases are estimated at 25.9% of 
the total FY 2024 power supply portfolio (the BLP plans to retire MiRECs 
equivalent to 23% of CY 2023 retail sales on or about December 31, 2023)

• These power supply expenses amount to approximately 68.4% of total 
operating expenses, excluding depreciation and excess legacy defined 
benefit pension contributions, and 50.3% of retail sales revenues, not 
including ERS revenues



Operating Expenses
• Energy waste reduction and energy optimization funds are again budgeted 

and planned at $400,000 in FY 2024 ($125,000 of which is planned for 
street lighting LED retrofits within the BLP’s FY 2024 Capital Improvement 
Plan)

• MPIA insurance expenses are budgeted at $450,000 in FY 2024 
(remaining portion of $1.2 million total annual transfer maintained within 
self-insurance fund)



BLP Power Supply Summary Fiscal Year 2017-2025
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Forecast Projected Projected Percent Change
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2017-2025

Total BLP Net Generation 
(MWh) 308,248 226,453 141,544 130,545 0 0 0 0 0 -100.00%
Net Wholesale Purchases (21,248) 53,405 138,186 125,270 241,870 238,000 227,525 218,100 213,500 -1104.82%
Renewable Purchases 25,692 27,010 27,190 36,929 53,130 59,206 64,175 76,250 83,000 223.06%
Net System Input 312,692 306,868 306,920 292,744 295,001 297,206 291,700 294,350 296,500 -5.18%

Total Retail Sales (MWh) 300,156 293,621 301,276 278,593 289,215 289,614 284,400 287,000 289,100 -3.68%
Percent Distribution Losses 4.0% 4.3% 1.8% 4.8% 2.0% 2.6% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Percent BLP Net Generation 98.6% 73.8% 46.1% 44.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percent Net Wholesale 
Purchase -6.8% 17.4% 45.0% 42.8% 82.0% 80.1% 78.0% 74.1% 72.0%
Percent Renewable Purchase 8.2% 8.8% 8.9% 12.6% 18.0% 19.9% 22.0% 25.9% 28.0%



(50,000)

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

M
W

h

Fiscal Year

Renewable Purchases Net BLP Generation Net Wholesale Purchases

BLP Power Supply Summary Fiscal Years 2017-2025



Average Dollars per MWh Operating Revenue Requirement

$66.39 
$58.45 

$50.96 
$58.15 

$67.33 $67.25 

$7.40 

$8.20 

$8.49 

$7.36 

$6.86 $6.77 

$7.07 

$9.20 

$9.80 

$10.24 

$11.99 $12.40 

$11.77 
$11.25 

$10.85 

$9.75 

$11.24 $11.91 
$4.96

$33.02
$37.52 $26.90

$15.52
$19.07

$26.21

$0.00
$4.70

$9.58
$9.49

$6.52
$6.28

$6.22 $6.18

$6.45
$6.68

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

$90

$100

$110

$120

$130

$140

2015-2016 Average 2017-2020 Average 2021 Actual 2022 Actual 2023 Forecast 2024 Budget

Power Supply System Operations Distribution and Engineering Administration and General Income Annual Debt Service Transfer to City



Operating Expenses
• Total payroll expenses (wages and benefits) are budgeted at the same 

level as now forecasted for FY 2023, at approximately $6,100,000, 
assuming 42 Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs)

• Actual BLP total payroll expenses in FY 2018 were $7,438,200 for 72 FTEs
• Our budgeted payroll then for FY 2023 represents an 18% reduction in total 

payroll expenses (-$1.34 million) and a reduction of 30 FTEs (-41.7%) in 
the last 5 years

• With a recent employee resignation, and two recent retirements, our active 
workforce currently numbers 40.  Over the next several months, we will be 
reevaluating our organizational structure in the areas impacted by these by 
these retirements and resignation and are quite likely to adjust these job 
descriptions a bit, before hiring and restoring two of these three FTEs. 



How is a dollar of retail electric revenue being spent in FY 23 and (proposed) in FY 24?

Total Annual Power Supply Expenses 51.3%

Payroll (Wages and Fringe Benefits) 16.1%

Annual Debt Service on Bonds (Principal and Interest) 7.3%

Transfers/Contributions to the City 5.3%

MPIA Insurance Expenses 1.2%

EWR/EO Expenses (including Street Lighting Capital Investments) 1.1%

All Other Estimated Utility Operating Expenses (excluding additional DB Pension Contributions) 5.1%

87.3%

Operating Income Available for Capital Assets and Other 12.7%

"Utility Purposes," and To Maintain Adequate Cash Reserves

Retail electric operating revenue does not include Environmental Remediation Surcharge (ERS)



All Other Estimated Utility Operating Expenses 

• Budgeted at $2,020,277 in FY 2023
• Now forecasted at $1,852,000 for FY 2023 (under budget by $168,277)

• Now budgeted in FY 2024 at $2,195,621 
• FY 2024 budget for these items as compared to FY 2023 budget for 

same items shows an increase of $175,344 (+ 8.67%)
• Several budgeted items comprise the majority of this amount:

(1) Development of 5-year distribution system capital plan (GRP Engineering)
(2) Several IT software enhancements (grid analytics, SCADA, texting)
(3) Snowmelt equipment contribution (unbudgeted in FY 2023) 
(4) Board added items for outside services (discussed at March Board meeting)
(5) Several Eaton Drive facility maintenance items



Use of Net Assets (including Utility Reserve Funds)

• Proposed 5-year utility capital plan (FY 24 - FY 28) totals $24.8 million
• No longer includes non-operating environmental remediation activities being implemented 

by other departments within City Administration under the direction and control of City 
Council

• Five-year FY 24 – FY 28 financial plan also includes funding for:
(1) Additional deposits to MPIA / MPPA Working Capital reserve funds (estimated @ $6.05 million)
(2) Annual debt-service (principal payments) – interest payments are expensed ($12.0 million)
(3) Additional contributions to legacy defined benefit obligations/liabilities (estimated @ $2.275 million) 

• Current base rates (with only increased anticipated PSCA collections) over 
the 5-year planning period are now estimated adequate to maintain 
recommended Minimum Cash Reserve Position of $18.0 million



GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER
BUDGET FY2024

Actual Actual Budget Forecast Budget Budget to Forecast Budget to Budget 
2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 2023-2024 Variance Variance 

Operating Revenue

Residential Sales 12,669,845 12,599,201 12,869,000 12,737,500 13,252,500 515,000 383,500 
Commerical/Industrial/Municipal Sales 22,735,373 22,728,899 24,156,002 23,607,500 24,747,500 1,140,000 591,498 

Total Charges for Services 35,405,218 35,328,100 37,025,002 36,345,000 38,000,000 1,655,000 974,998 

Street Lighting 414,173 376,312 338,000 335,000 335,000 - (3,000)

Other Revenue 271,230 237,135 198,000 202,045 174,281 (27,764) (23,719)

Total Operating Revenue 36,090,621 35,941,547 37,561,002 36,882,045 38,509,281 1,627,236 948,279 

Operating Expenses

Purchased Power 14,740,982 16,841,879 20,142,118 19,150,000 19,300,000 150,000 (842,118)
Distribution - -
Distribution Operations 2,455,421 2,131,370 2,515,693 1,950,840 1,942,813 (8,027) (572,880)
Distribution Maintenance 2,833,781 2,964,507 2,895,260 3,409,830 3,559,903 150,073 664,643 
Energy Optimization 433,447 290,816 200,000 174,890 275,000 100,110 75,000 
Administration 2,704,532 2,532,771 2,941,233 3,022,364 3,142,804 120,440 201,571 
Legacy Pension Expense 931,934 146,946 1,106,617 710,000 498,436 (211,564) (608,181)

Operating Expenses before Depreciation 24,100,097 24,908,289 29,800,921 28,417,923 28,718,956 301,033 (1,081,965)

Operating Net Income Before Depreciation 11,990,524 11,033,258 7,760,081 8,464,121 9,790,325 1,326,204 2,030,244 

Depreciation 1,548,247 1,891,594 1,850,000 1,850,000 2,024,000 174,000 174,000 
Operating Net Income 10,442,277 9,141,664 5,910,081 6,614,121 7,766,325 1,152,204 1,856,244 

Nonoperating Income/(Expenses) 580,550 (1,017,153) 142,170 676,974 610,300 (66,674) 468,130 
Environmental Remediation Expense (9,990,741) (10,134,689) (5,000,000) - (1,000,000) (1,000,000) 4,000,000 
Environmental Remediation Surcharge 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

(9,410,191) (11,151,842) (4,857,830) 676,974 610,300 (66,674) 5,468,130 

Transfers to the City of Grand Haven (1,798,150) (1,789,553) (1,868,150) (1,834,000) (1,916,750) (82,750) (48,600)

Increase in Net Assets (766,064) (3,799,731) (815,899) 5,457,095 6,459,875 1,002,780 7,275,774 



Minimum Cash Reserve Position

• Considerations (as recommended by Utility Financial Solutions)
(1) Minimum days cash of annual operating expenses 

(excluding power supply)
(2) Minimum days cash of total power supply expenses

• Market risk premium for unhedged portions
(3) One year of annual debt service (principal and interest)
(4) Estimated cost of next fiscal-year capital improvements
(5) Uninsured portion of historical rate base
(6) Prefunding of potential working capital call from MPPA to address 

evolving credit concerns in wholesale power marketplace (under ESA)
• Staff recommends Board set Minimum Cash Reserve position at $18.0 million for FY 24



GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN FY 2024-2028 X X X X X x X

FY23 FY23 Projection FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 5 YEAR Cost 6 YEAR Cost

DISTRIBUTION MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS

1North Sub Transformer T2-Circuit North-60 D00851 1,200,000 1,100,684 0 
22400V Upgrades 0 

DeSpelder Voltage Upgrade D00965 250,000 405,000 0 
0 

Pole Blanket DB0011 100,000 150,000 150,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 100,000 625,000 

Overhead Lines Blanket DB0021 150,000 150,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 125,000 925,000 

Underground Lines Blanket DB0041 125,000 75,000 225,000 130,000 130,000 330,000 130,000 945,000 

Transformers Blanket DB0051 200,000 205,000 200,000 175,000 175,000 175,000 125,000 850,000 

New Services Blanket DB0061 70,000 50,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 350,000 

New Metering Blanket DB0071 35,000 20,000 35,000 35,000 37,500 37,500 37,500 182,500 

New Street Lights Blanket DB0081 35,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 25,000 25,000 110,000 
Streetlight LED Conversions D00090 200,000 85,000 125,000 125,000 

City Road Upgrades Blanket DB0101 80,000 0 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 400,000 
3Vehicle Replacement DVXXXX 45,000 110,000 760,000 480,000 480,000 480,000 2,310,000 

Pickup Truck #222 48,965 0 
0 

4Misc. Circuit Reconductor/Rebuild 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,100,000 2,225,000 8,325,000 
Circuit Rebuild/Riverhaven 3 D01075 83,204 0 

0 
Harbor Drive Undergrounding 1,000,000 500,000 1,500,000 

0 
5Morford Sub Line Relaying Upgrade D00841 71,651 550,000 550,000 

Service Area Expansion 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000 
OH Service 17840 WSLR D02080 23,130 0 

0 
6Circuit Osipoff-42 D00700 600,000 400,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 
7Circuit Osipoff-34 D00600 700,000 400,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 
8Osipoff Control House D00800 900,000 1,448,361 0 

OMX Texting 28,500 28,500 
Locator 10,000 10,000 

SUBTOTAL 4,790,000 4,735,995 4,403,500 4,695,000 3,917,500 3,722,500 3,497,500 20,236,000 24,971,995 

ADMINISTRATION/FACILITIES
Admin Factility         P08000 4,000,000 21,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 
Misc. Admin 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 175,000 

SUBTOTAL 4,035,000 21,000 4,035,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 4,175,000 4,196,000 

TECHNOLOGY
Network Backup System 10,000 10,000 20,000 
Host Server Replacement 80,000 80,000 80,000 160,000 
Printers Replacement 10,000 10,000 
San Storage 40,000 40,000 80,000 120,000 
Microsoft Windows Server Upgrades 9,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 36,000 
Network Infrastructure 5,000 5,000 10,000 10,000 25,000 
Wi-Fi Upgrades 0 
Firewall 25,000 25,000 

SUBTOTAL 134,000 - 147,000 10,000 57,000 90,000 92,000 396,000 396,000 

TOTAL  CAPITAL $          8,959,000 $          4,756,995 $         8,585,500 $         4,740,000 $           4,009,500 $           3,847,500 $           3,624,500 $     24,807,000 $   29,563,995 



Actual Actual Budget Forecast Budget
 Budget to 

Forecast 

 Budget to 

Budget 

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 2023-2024 Variance Variance

Operating Revenue

Residential Sales 12,669,845         12,599,201         12,869,000         12,737,500         13,252,500         515,000 383,500           

Commerical/Industrial/Municipal Sales 22,735,373         22,728,899         24,156,002         23,607,500         24,747,500         1,140,000           591,498           

Total Charges for Services 35,405,218         35,328,100         37,025,002         36,345,000         38,000,000         1,655,000           974,998           

Street Lighting 414,173 376,312 338,000 335,000 335,000 - (3,000) 

Other Revenue 271,230 237,135 198,000 202,045 174,281 (27,764) (23,719)            

Total Operating Revenue 36,090,621         35,941,547         37,561,002         36,882,045         38,509,281         1,627,236           948,279           

Operating Expenses

Purchased Power 14,740,982         16,841,879         20,142,118         19,150,000         19,300,000         150,000 (842,118)          

Distribution - - 

Distribution Operations 2,455,421           2,131,370           2,515,693           1,950,840           1,942,813           (8,027) (572,880)          

Distribution Maintenance 2,833,781           2,964,507           2,895,260           3,409,830           3,559,903           150,073 664,643           

Energy Optimization 433,447 290,816 200,000 174,890 275,000 100,110 75,000 

Administration 2,704,532           2,532,771           2,941,233           3,022,364           3,142,804           120,440 201,571           

Legacy Pension Expense 931,934 146,946 1,106,617           710,000 498,436 (211,564) (608,181)          

Operating Expenses before Depreciation 24,100,097         24,908,289         29,800,921         28,417,923         28,718,956         301,033 (1,081,965)      

Operating Net Income Before Depreciation 11,990,524         11,033,258         7,760,081           8,464,121           9,790,325           1,326,204           2,030,244        

Depreciation 1,548,247           1,891,594           1,850,000           1,850,000           2,024,000           174,000 174,000           

Operating Net Income 10,442,277         9,141,664           5,910,081           6,614,121           7,766,325           1,152,204           1,856,244        

Nonoperating Income/(Expenses) 580,550 (1,017,153)          142,170 676,974 610,300 (66,674) 468,130           

Environmental Remediation Expense (9,990,741)          (10,134,689)        (5,000,000)          - (1,000,000) (1,000,000)          4,000,000        

Environmental Remediation Surcharge 1,000,000 1,000,000           1,000,000        

(9,410,191)          (11,151,842)        (4,857,830)          676,974 610,300 (66,674) 5,468,130        

Transfers to the City of Grand Haven (1,798,150)          (1,789,553)          (1,868,150)          (1,834,000)          (1,916,750)          (82,750) (48,600)            

Increase in Net Assets (766,064) (3,799,731)          (815,899) 5,457,095           6,459,875           1,002,780           7,275,774        

GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

BUDGET FY2024

4/17/2023

FY24 Budget Summary 04.13.23.xlsxSTATEMENT  

5B



GRAND HAVEN BOARD OF LIGHT AND POWER

5 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN FY 2024-2028 X X X X X x X

FY23 FY23 Projection FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 5 YEAR Cost

North Sub Transformer T2-Circuit North-60 D00851 1,200,000 1,100,684 0
2400V Upgrades 0
    DeSpelder Voltage Upgrade D00965 250,000 405,000 0

0
Pole Blanket DB0011 100,000 150,000 150,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 100,000 625,000
Overhead Lines Blanket DB0021 150,000 150,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 125,000 925,000
Underground Lines Blanket DB0041 125,000 75,000 225,000 130,000 130,000 330,000 130,000 945,000
Transformers Blanket DB0051 200,000 205,000 200,000 175,000 175,000 175,000 125,000 850,000
New Services Blanket DB0061 70,000 50,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 350,000
New Metering Blanket DB0071 35,000 20,000 35,000 35,000 37,500 37,500 37,500 182,500
New Street Lights Blanket DB0081 35,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 25,000 25,000 110,000
Streetlight LED Conversions D00090 200,000 85,000 125,000 125,000
City Road Upgrades Blanket DB0101 80,000 0 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 400,000
Vehicle Replacement DVXXXX 45,000 110,000 760,000 480,000 480,000 480,000 2,310,000
     Pickup Truck #222 48,965 0

0
Misc. Circuit Reconductor/Rebuild 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,100,000 2,225,000 8,325,000
     Circuit Rebuild/Riverhaven 3 D01075 83,204 0

0
Harbor Drive Undergrounding 1,000,000 500,000 1,500,000

0
Morford Sub Line Relaying Upgrade D00841 71,651 550,000 550,000
Service Area Expansion 100,000 0 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000
     OH Service 17840 WSLR D02080 23,130 0

0
Circuit Osipoff-42 D00700 600,000 400,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Circuit Osipoff-34 D00600 700,000 400,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
Osipoff Control House D00800 900,000 1,448,361 0
OMX Texting 28,500 28,500
Locator 10,000 10,000

SUBTOTAL 4,790,000 4,735,995 4,403,500 4,695,000 3,917,500 3,722,500 3,497,500 20,236,000 

Admin Factility       P08000 4,000,000 21,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
Misc. Admin 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 175,000

SUBTOTAL 4,035,000 21,000 4,035,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 4,175,000 

Network Backup System 10,000 10,000 20,000
Host Server Replacement 80,000 80,000 80,000 160,000
Printers Replacement 10,000 10,000
San Storage 40,000 40,000 80,000 120,000
Microsoft Windows Server Upgrades 9,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 36,000
Network Infrastructure 5,000 5,000 10,000 10,000 25,000
Wi-Fi Upgrades 0
Firewall 25,000 25,000

SUBTOTAL 134,000 - 147,000 10,000 57,000 90,000 92,000 396,000 

TOTAL  CAPITAL 8,959,000$    4,756,995$    8,585,500$    4,740,000$    4,009,500$    3,847,500$    3,624,500$    24,807,000$    

DISTRIBUTION MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS

TECHNOLOGY

ADMINISTRATION/FACILITIES

4/17/202312:03 PM

H:\Budget\2024\FY24 -FY28 Capital Plan Summary 04.13.23.xlsx

5B



5C









 

Progressive AE, Inc. 
Corporate Office: | 1811 4 Mile Road NE | Grand Rapids, MI 49525 | 616.361.2664 | progressiveae.com 
  Regional Office: | 330 South Tryon Street, Suite 500 | Charlotte, NC 28202 | 704.731.8080 | progressiveae.com 

 
April 14, 2023 
 
 
 
Mr Erik Booth 
Grand Haven Board of Light and Power 
1700 Eaton Drive 
Grand Haven MI 49417 
 
 
Re:  Fire Station – Alternate Approaches 
 Progressive AE Project No. 76780010 
 
 
Dear Erik: 
 
We understand that Board member Knoth has asked whether an option for the Fire station would be to 
use a portion of the existing office area to relocate a smaller group of staff, or to phase in the work over a 
period. 
 
After due consideration, it is PAE’s opinion that these options, while perhaps reducing the overall cost, 
would be less cost-effective if considered in terms of dollars per workspace created. More cost efficient 
options can be identified in buildings that do not contain the challenges that the Fire Station embodies. 
 
Reducing the number of occupants does not help with the costs for environmental remediation in the 
office spaces, and moving a limited portion of the team will not meet the organizational needs we 
recognized in our earlier work. 
 
Phasing the work may delay immediate costs, but we are concerned that future costs are unknown and 
may make a multi-year approach risky due to inflation uncertainty. 
 
Either approach leaves the Board with less-than-optimal results and will require further investment 
elsewhere to meet their goals. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
John R. Eberly PE 
Senior Project Manager 
 
 
JRE/cab 
P:\76780010\01 ADMIN\A2 CORRESPONDENCE\a Owner\2023 03 08 76780010 GHBLP Invoice Letter.docx 
 



6B









6B




























	FY 2023 Budget.pdf
	Slide 1: GHBLP Initial FY 2024 Budget Presentation
	Slide 2: Strategic Plan Priorities for FY 2024 Budget
	Slide 3: Strategic Plan Priorities for FY 2024 Budget
	Slide 4: Projected Retail Sales Volume
	Slide 5: Projected Retail Sales Volume (excl. Street Lighting)
	Slide 6: Proposed Retail Rates
	Slide 7: Proposed Average Revenue per KWh (Cents)
	Slide 8: Proposed Average Revenue per KWh (Cents)
	Slide 9: Proposed Average Revenue per KWh (Cents)
	Slide 10: Projected Electric Retail Operating Revenues
	Slide 11: Projected Environmental Remediation Surcharge
	Slide 12: Environmental Remediation Surcharge
	Slide 13: Environmental Remediation Surcharge
	Slide 14: Environmental Remediation Surcharge
	Slide 15: Environmental Remediation Surcharge
	Slide 16: Operating Expenses
	Slide 17: Operating Expenses
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: Operating Expenses
	Slide 22
	Slide 23: All Other Estimated Utility Operating Expenses 
	Slide 24: Use of Net Assets (including Utility Reserve Funds)
	Slide 25
	Slide 26: Minimum Cash Reserve Position
	Slide 27


